

Toolkit for organizing, facilitating and documenting multi-stakeholder platform meetings

Mamusha Lemma¹, Abiro Tigabe², Mesfin Mekonnen¹, Abdi Etafa¹ and Barbara Wieland¹

- I International Livestock Research Institute
- 2 International Center for Agricultural Research in the Dry Areas



November 2020













CGIAR is a global partnership that unites organizations engaged in research for a food-secure future. The CGIAR Research Program on Livestock provides research-based solutions to help smallholder farmers, pastoralists and agro-pastoralists transition to sustainable, resilient livelihoods and to productive enterprises that will help feed future generations. It aims to increase the productivity and profitability of livestock agri-food systems in sustainable ways, making meat, milk and eggs more available and affordable across the developing world. The Program brings together five core partners: the International Livestock Research Institute (ILRI) with a mandate on livestock; the International Center for Tropical Agriculture (CIAT), which works on forages; the International Center for Agricultural Research in the Dry Areas (ICARDA), which works on small ruminants and dryland systems; the Swedish University of Agricultural Sciences (SLU) with expertise particularly in animal health and genetics and the Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) which connects research into development and innovation and scaling processes.

The Program thanks all donors and organizations which globally support its work through their contributions to the CGIAR Trust Fund

© 2020



This publication is copyrighted by the International Livestock Research Institute (ILRI). It is licensed for use under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International Licence. To view this licence, visit https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0..

Unless otherwise noted, you are free to share (copy and redistribute the material in any medium or format), adapt (remix, transform, and build upon the material) for any purpose, even commercially, under the following conditions:



ATTRIBUTION. The work must be attributed, but not in any way that suggests endorsement by ILRI or the author(s).

NOTICE:

For any reuse or distribution, the licence terms of this work must be made clear to others.

Any of the above conditions can be waived if permission is obtained from the copyright holder.

Nothing in this licence impairs or restricts the author's moral rights.

Fair dealing and other rights are in no way affected by the above.

The parts used must not misrepresent the meaning of the publication.

ILRI would appreciate being sent a copy of any materials in which text, photos etc. have been used.

Editing, design and layout—ILRI Editorial and Publishing Services, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia.

Photo credit: ILRI/Apollo Habtamu

Citation: Lemma, M., Tigabe, A., Mekonnen, M., Etafa, A. and Wieland, B. 2020. Toolkit for organizing, facilitating and documenting multi-stakeholder platform meetings. Nairobi, Kenya: ILRI.

Patron: Professor Peter C Doherty AC, FAA, FRS

Animal scientist, Nobel Prize Laureate for Physiology or Medicine—1996

Box 30709, Nairobi 00100 Kenya Phone +254 20 422 3000

Fax +254 20 422 3001 Email ilri-kenya@cgiar.org ilri.org
better lives through livestock

ILRI is a CGIAR research centre

Box 5689, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia Phone +251 11 617 2000 Fax +251 11 667 6923 Email ilri-ethiopia@cgiar.org

ILRI has offices in East Africa • South Asia • Southeast and East Asia • Southern Africa • West Africa

Contents

ntroduction	I
Planning and managing multi-stakeholder platforms	2
Before multi-stakeholder platform meetings	2
During multi-stakeholder platform meetings	3
After multi-stakeholder platform meetings	4
Participatory principles of MSP meetings	5
Sustainability challenges of multi-stakeholder platforms	6
Process monitoring and documentation of multi-stakeholder platform processes	8
Report checklist	8
Process note-taking techniques	9
Outcome indicators	9
Annexes	П
Annex I. Multi-stakeholder platform meeting planner	П
Annex 2. Stakeholder identification and analysis checklist	13
Annex 3. Issue identification and analysis checklist	14
Further reading	15

Introduction

In Ethiopia, the CGIAR Research Program on Livestock (CRP Livestock), in partnership with research and development partners, has conducted action research and capacity development interventions to address livestock production and marketing challenges and to improve the livelihoods of rural communities.

Many factors such as knowledge gaps of community members, limited engagement capacity of partners, and undeveloped service provision system constrain livestock production and marketing in the intervention sites. To address knowledge gaps of community members and strengthen the response capacity of partners, collaborative and participatory learning processes such as community conversations (CCs) have been tested as a meaningful way of engagement and learning with community groups and local service providers (Annet et al. 2020).

However, since addressing some of the issues raised during community conversations is beyond the capacity of community groups and involves other stakeholders, other forms of intervention such as multi-stakeholder platforms (MSPs) are required to address strategic or institutional issues at different levels. With this purpose, the CRP Livestock program in Ethiopia has adopted MSPs as a multi-actor partnership engagement approach for analysing livestock production and marketing problems and identifying solutions to these challenges.

MSPs are facilitated meetings among groups of individuals or stakeholder representatives with different backgrounds, capacities, resource domains, and interests. These platforms bring together these players to analyse problems, identify opportunities and find ways to achieve their goals. MSPs come in different forms: learning alliances (Lundy 2004; Lundy, Gottret and Ashby 2005; Belt et al. 2011), coalitions (Biggs 1990), innovation networks (Spielman et al. 2010; Ayele et al. 2012), collaborative research platforms (Visser et al. 2012) and innovation platforms (Nerderlof et al. 2011; Nederlof and Pyburn 2012).

The aim of the MSPs is to facilitate interaction and linkage among relevant stakeholders on specific livestock production and marketing issues in community groups. They are instrumental in discussions on institutional problems such as inputs and service delivery, disease surveillance, coordination of activities, market linkages and stakeholder interactions. The model used to set up of successful MSPs depends on the level and scale of interventions envisioned. MSPs can be established at different levels. The institutional (zonal and district level) MSPs aim to address strategic issues while the community level MSPs address implementation or operational issues.

This toolkit is meant to be used in supporting CRP Livestock partners and other users at the district and community level to establish and manage MSPs effectively. It is presented in a simple way that provides the basic structure and steps of setting up multi-stakeholder platform. Each of the steps in the toolkit requires localized planning in the community and among the targeted stakeholders.

I

Planning and managing multi-stakeholder platforms

A systematic engagement of stakeholders in MSPs requires good planning, facilitation, monitoring and coordination of interactions and activities. Key to successful functioning of MSPs is getting stakeholders with diverse interests and needs to work together on a common agenda that is of potential mutual benefit to them.

This toolkit provides a structure to plan and manage MSP processes. On purpose, the guide is kept generic to allow for context-specific adaptations. Each of the steps outlined below needs detailed planning and use of specific facilitation tools.

Before multi-stakeholder platform meetings

- Decide on focus and purpose of the MSP: what is the subject of the meeting or what it is about?
- Identify issues through light problem analysis using participatory tools. Consider issues and
 action points from previous community-level discussions (e.g. community conversations). This
 helps decide on the kind of stakeholders to be involved in the MSP meetings.
- Based on the results of the problem analysis, identify preliminary objectives and expected outcomes for the stakeholder meetings.
- Conduct initial brainstorming and analysis
 of key stakeholders: their goals, roles, needs,
 contributions, and importance and influence.
 Also conduct focus group discussions and key
 informant interviews with a few representative
 stakeholders from different stakeholder groups
 to gauge interest, power, define scope and
 identify relevant stakeholders to be invited to
 MSP meetings.
- Define convening format (e.g. brainstorming, presentations, small group conversations, plenary discussions, panel discussions, experience sharing etc.).
- Identify discussion issues/points and develop process agenda for facilitating the stakeholder meetings. Review, revise, and order the agenda items.

Decide on focus and purpose



Identify issues through light problem analysis



Identify preliminary objectives and expected outcomes



Conduct initial brainstorming and analysis of key stakeholders



Define convening format



Develop process agenda



Identify facilitators and note takers

- · Decide on venue and time: consider accessibility both for women and men community members
- Identify and invite men and women participants and confirm their attendance. Invite stakeholders who will contribute to the platform and who will be affected by the outcome.

- Identify and invite community leaders or partners to open and close meetings. Develop information materials for government communication workers.
- Identify facilitators/moderators and process note takers and photographer
- · Prepare process note-taking and report formats.
- Prepare registration sheets and participant packs (e.g. knowledge products such as posters, leaflets, stakeholder contacts, etc.)
- Confirm if everything is in order in advance using a process checklist.

During multi-stakeholder platform meetings

First/establishment meeting

- Come early and setup the venue in a way that enables interaction of participants.
- Register participants and distribute information materials.
- Get participants to introduce themselves and state their expectations for the meeting.
- · Ask participants to sit with people they do not know or do not normally interact with.
- Review housekeeping information.
- Start and end the meeting on time.
- Discuss the purpose, objectives and expected outcomes of MSPs in general using visioning techniques.
- · Define a vision of success: the desired outcomes, enabling factors and success indicators.
- · Explore stakeholder interests and needs.
- Discuss potential benefits and contributions and clarify expectations.
- Agree on working modalities: coordination, leadership/management and communication.
- Document decisions and action points including the preliminary agenda, time and venue of the next meeting.
- Thank participants and close the meeting positively.

Regular/subsequent meetings

- Come early and setup the meeting place.
- · Register participants.
- · Review housekeeping information.
- Start and end the meeting on time.
- Review action items from the previous meeting.
- Review the meeting agenda and ask for additions to it at the beginning of the meeting.
- · Discuss new issues. Ask questions and facilitate the meeting.
- Keep the discussion on target and make sure participants are heard and their needs are met.
- Clarify issues and identify underlying interests.
- Explore multiple perspectives and develop diverse options.
- Use the agenda to keep the meeting moving.
- Summarize and document agreements, decisions/recommendations and action points coming out of the process.
- Establish action items. Encourage MSP members to plan and implement activities as a platform or individually.

- · Set the date and place of the next meeting and outline a preliminary agenda.
- Get feedback from a few men and women participants on what went well and what needs to be improved in the next meeting.
- · Thank participants and close the meeting positively.

After multi-stakeholder platform meetings

Review, reflection and lessons learning.

- At the end of each stakeholder meeting, hold a facilitation team reflection and learning session to review and refine the process and summarize emerging themes, key decisions, and action points.
- Use the following reflection questions:
 - What were the key outputs of the MSP meeting?
 - What went really well?
 - What were the challenges encountered? Did we deal with these in the best way possible?
 If not, what could have been done differently?
 - Were participants equally engaged (men and women, different stakeholder groups)? What do we need to change for the next meeting?
 - · Has there been evidence of change in attitudes and practices?
 - · How do we consider the level of learning in the community, any evidence?
 - How can we follow up on this session in the next session?
- Document processes, lessons learned, and follow-up actions in a report.
- Follow-up on action items. Make follow-up discussions and provide implementation support with platform members who took responsibility to implement actions individually or as a platform.
- Document results of the platform and identify new discussion issues. The focus of MSPs may
 change over time, and new challenges and opportunities may demand continued engagement of
 stakeholders in collaborative learning and action processes.
- · Begin to plan the next meeting.

Participatory principles of MSP meetings

Multi-stakeholder processes involve participatory approaches and methods. These follow basic principles, which include:

- Explore multiple perspectives from men and women.
- · Respect local norms and understand cultural influences.
- · Start and end meetings on time.
- Pay attention to non-verbal communication signals.
- Apply a variety of interactive facilitation methods and activities.
- Make sure that each participant is heard and contributes.
- Paraphrase and summarize to structure and keep the discussion in focus.
- Deep dive and explore views of men and women participants using probing questions.
- Make sure that the discussion point in a question is fully explored and that participants agree with the outcome before moving to the next discussions point.
- Make sure that participants listen to and respect one another during discussions.
- · Remember that every idea counts and encourage participants to contribute.
- Ensure open, active and transparent participation of everyone in the meeting.
- Make sure that there is shared ownership of the decision-making processes and outcomes.

Sustainability challenges of multi-stakeholder platforms

While MSPs offer opportunities for social learning and collective action among stakeholder groups around common goals, their benefits can be constrained by many challenges.

Some of the challenges facing MSP processes include:

- · Poor stakeholder engagement and commitment.
- · Lack of trust and opaque communication.
- · Underrepresentation of some stakeholders.
- · Underrepresentation of women or passivity in meetings.
- · Power imbalance and domination by some members/stakeholders.
- · Poor coordination and management of meetings and processes.
- Weak social learning and joint action processes.
- · Weak enabling environment and supporting institutions.
- · Limited strength and partnering/negotiation skills of stakeholder representatives.

Addressing these challenges and maximizing the benefits from MSP processes requires strengthening platform coordination and leadership capacity through problem-solving training and mentoring support. The effectiveness and sustainability of MSP processes depend on the coordination and engagement capacity of stakeholders and the benefits individual participants believe they are realizing from participating in the platforms.

MSP activities must be driven by the needs of stakeholders. They can function effectively when actionable knowledge and information is shared, and collective learning and action is facilitated among participating stakeholders.

The size and composition of MSPs depend on the issues at hand. They may not bring all members together all the time. MSP meetings can be issue specific, only bringing together certain stakeholder groups to address common issues. For example, if marketing is an issue, market actors can come together to discuss, share information, and address marketing challenges.

MSP membership is flexible and purely voluntary. Depending on the issues at hand, different stakeholders can join or leave the MSP at any time. MSPs are not a formal structure, and they exist only as long as the issues at hand need to be addressed. They may continue to exist if new issues emerge with new or existing members. MSP processes are not expected to involve the same stakeholders all the time. Different stakeholders may join or leave MSPs at different times depending on the issues under discussion.

Resource organizations such as research or development programs can play a facilitating and supporting role in terms of providing capacity development, mentoring and documentation support to MSPs. But resource organizations should

not finance MSP meetings. The stakeholders must self-finance their own participation in MSP activities. Mandated institutions or other relevant stakeholders can take up a coordination and leadership role in MSPs. For example, at the community level, a cooperative can become implementing organizations responsible for coordinating MSP activities.

Process monitoring and documentation of multi-stakeholder platform processes

Report checklist

Introduction:

- · Background
- Objectives
- Participant composition
- · Date and venue

Approach and process:

- Representation and presence/interactivity of stakeholders (men and women).
- · Opening and closing sessions.
- · Activities and methods of engagement.
- Observation on reactions/body language of participants.
- · How participants reacted to discussion issues (divergence, convergence and turning points).

Main points, agreements and actions:

- Key discussion issues addressed in stakeholder meetings.
- · Themes that emerge from stakeholder meetings.
- · What participants say and how they say it.
- Areas of tension and strong emotions during stakeholder meetings.
- Quotes from stakeholders in meetings.
- Decisions and action points that evolve out of stakeholder meetings.

Observations, reflections and lessons learned:

- · Overall reflection and insights on the process.
- Feedback and comments from participants.
- · Analysis and lessons learned.

Annex

- Participants list
- Action points.

Process note-taking techniques

- Capture the process, key issues discussed, insights made, agreements, action points and quotes from stakeholder meetings without your judgment.
- Do not try to write down everything. Summarize key words/phrases.
- Listen for statements that might be useful quotes later and write those down as best as you can including the gender/representation of the speaker.
- Listen for why participants are saying what they say. Think about what is going on beneath the surface. Body language can give important clues.
- Note what people say and how they say it. Watch for areas of tension and strong emotion.
- Listen when the facilitator(s) takes a moment to summarize the discussion.
- Look for turning points in the discussion, where participants were able to break through disagreements, find compromises and/or reach a new level (agreements and decisions).
- Compare what participants say at the beginning of the meeting with where they have arrived at the end.
- Actively take notes during the opening and closing sessions.
- Interact with participants during breaks and try to capture their impressions and feelings about the meeting.
- Review notes with the facilitator(s) immediately and organize the notes as soon as possible after the meeting.

Outcome indicators

Use the following generic indicator checklist to monitor and evaluate MSP processes and results. Adapt or add indicators based on specific conditions. Note that members of the MSP should be involved in the setting up and monitoring of outcome indicators.

Some of the indicators are qualitative and others are quantitative. Develop appropriate data collection and analysis tools to measure your indicators.

- Power dynamics, inclusiveness, and representation of stakeholders stakeholder group diversity, gender disaggregation per stakeholder group.
- · Stakeholder participation, commitment and accountability.
- Meeting attendance and active engagement in discussions and negotiation of actions.
- · Trust, collaboration and communication among stakeholders.
- Information sharing, social learning and influencing process, quality, impact.
- · Process and quality of consensus building on actions and strategies.
- · Empowerment of stakeholder groups.
- · Changes in knowledge, attitudes and practices of platform members.
- New business opportunities for stakeholders.
- Engagement and partnering capacity of stakeholder groups.
- Social and collaborative learning and collective action.
- Quality of stakeholder interaction, relationship, engagement and facilitation process.
- · Relevance and practicability of decisions and action points.
- Gender inclusiveness of representation and collaborative process.
- Innovative service provision models.

- Achievement of platform goals and objectives.
- Quality of coordination, facilitation and organization of platform meetings.

Annexes

Annex I. Multi-stakeholder platform meeting planner

Meeting title: What is the meeting about? What is its focus and content?

Venue and time: Date and duration of the meeting

Meeting purpose: What is the meeting going to achieve? What are the specific objectives and expected outcomes of the meeting?

Meeting format and activities: What form will the meeting take and what will be done to achieve its purpose or objectives?

- Discussion brainstorming, structured.
- Presentation informing, sharing, feedback, validation.
- Knowledge sharing informing, influencing, scaling, co-learning
- Storytelling inspiring, relating, networking.
- Demonstration influencing, demand generation, scaling.
- Monitoring progress review and update.

Knowledge exchange tools: What active methods and tools will be used to facilitate knowledge exchange during MSP meetings?

The following knowledge sharing tools can be used to facilitate MSP meetings. Depending on your choice of methods, plan in detail why and how you will be using the tools.

- Buzz session
- Brainstorming
- Storytelling
- Fishbowl
- Panel discussion
- Role play
- Focus group
- Interview
- · knowledge fair
- Poster session
- Action planning
- · After-action review

Materials and supplies: What materials or equipment will be needed?

Facilitator: Who will facilitate the meeting? Specify selection criteria and facilitator profile (qualification and facilitation experience).

Participants: Who will participate in the meeting and why? What will be their contribution? How will they benefit from the meeting?

Meeting agenda: What topics will be discussed in the meeting? Who is responsible for each topic and how long will each topic take? What is expected from each discussion topic?

Decisions: What action points will be agreed on at the end of the meeting? Who will be responsible for each action point, and how long will it take to implement the action? What is expected to change from the action?

Meeting follow-up: What follow-up and monitoring tasks will be done after the meeting? Who will be responsible for this, and how and when will it be done?

Meeting review: Has the meeting achieved its objectives? What have been the challenges and successes? What lessons have been learned, and how will they be used?

Annex 2. Stakeholder identification and analysis checklist

Use the following questions to identify relevant stakeholders and design appropriate stakeholder engagement strategies.

- Who are the stakeholders?
- Why are they stakeholders?
- How are they affected and to what degree?
- What are their interests or concerns?
- What is their power or influence?
- What is their role or contribution?
- What are their needs and goals?
- What are their capacities and strengths?
- What is their resource domain?

Annex 3. Issue identification and analysis checklist

Use the following questions to determine the focus of multi-stakeholder platform meetings and identify relevant stakeholders to be invited to MSP activities.

- What is the issue?
- Why is it an issue?
- How is it identified?
- Who is directly or indirectly affected by the issue? Who is most affected by it? How are they affected?
- Why should we address this issue? What would happen if this issue was not addressed?
- How could this issue be addressed? What is needed to address this issue?
- · How do we know if the issue is successfully addressed?
- Who should be involved in addressing and monitoring this issue?

Further reading

- Ayele, S., Duncan, A., Larbi, A. and Khanh, T. Tan. 2012. Enhancing innovation in livestock value chains through networks: Lessons from fodder innovation case studies in developing countries. *Science and Public Policy* 39: 333–346.
- Belt, J., W. Goris, S. Debela, F. Kefyalew, E. Smulders and P. Visser. 2011. Learning and earning: How a value chain learning alliance strengthens farmer entrepreneurship in Ethiopia. KIT Bulletin 395, KIT Publishers.
- Biggs, S. D. 1990. A multiple source of innovation model of agricultural research and technology promotion. *World Development* 18: 1481–1499.
- Dror, I., Cadilhon, J. J., Schut, M., Misiko, M. and Maheshwari, S. 2016. Innovation platforms for agricultural development: Evaluating the mature innovation platforms landscape. UK: Routledge.
- Leask, M., Lee, C., Milner, T., Norton, M. and Rathod, D. 2008. Knowledge management tools and techniques: helping you access the right knowledge at the right time. Improvement and Development Agency for local government (IDeA).
- Lundy, M. 2004. Learning alliances with development partners: A framework for out scaling research results. In: Pachico, D. (ed.) *Scaling up and out: Achieving widespread impact through agricultural research*. Cali, Colombia: International Center for Tropical Agriculture (CIAT).
- Lundy, M., Gottret, M. Veronica, and Ashby, J. 2005. Learning alliances: An approach for building multistakeholder innovation systems. ILAC Brief 8.
- Mulema, A. A., Kinati, W., Lemma, M., Mekonnen, M., G. Alemu, B., Elias, B., Demeke, Y., Desta, H. and Wieland, B. 2020. Clapping with Two Hands: Transforming Gender Relations and Zoonotic Disease Risks through Community Conversations in Rural Ethiopia. *Human Ecology*. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10745-020-00184-y
- Nederlof, S. and Pyburn, R. 2012. One finger cannot lift a rock: Facilitating innovation platforms to trigger institutional change in West Africa. KIT Publishers, Amsterdam.
- Nederlof, S., Wongtschowski, M. and Van der Lee, F. 2011. Putting heads together. Agricultural innovation platforms in practice. Bulletin 396, KIT Publishers.
- Nederlof, S., Wongtschowski, M. and van der Lee, F. 2011. *Putting Heads Together: Agricultural Innovation Platforms in Practice*. Bulletin 396, KIT Publishers, The Netherlands.
- Spielman, David J., Davis, K., Negash, M. and Ayele, G. 2010. Rural innovation systems and networks: findings from a study of Ethiopian smallholders. *Agric Hum Values* 28: 195–212.
- Visser, P., Steen, M., Greiling, J., Hayesso, T., Neefjes, R. and Greijn, H. (eds.). 2012. *Pro-Poor Value Chain Development: Private Sector-Led Innovative Practices in Ethiopia*. Addis Ababa, Ethiopia: SNV Netherlands Development Organization.